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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF
M/s R Mall Developers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s R Mall Developers Private
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended and notes to the
Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the  financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015,as amended, (“IndAS™)and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, and its profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
‘Auditing (“SA”’s) specified under section 143(10)-of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company s Board of Directors is respons1ble for the other information. The other mfo‘rp ;
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the tm"-"’ .
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. A \_// /)



Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information indentified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The rlsk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is hlgher than for one resulfingfrgm
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresefitatiGiigy
override of internal control. W2 \




 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i)of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(1) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(1))  to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Incer €).
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this chorta
agreement with the books of account. %/,

2 | W72y, 1
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the IndAS specified Lllﬁdehéectitﬁf /)
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. "f-:‘.: _ ~—



(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate Report in "Annexure

BH

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

il.

iii.

iv.

Vi.

Vii.

Viii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements, if any.

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at 31%' March 2025 under the
applicable law or accounting standards, as it has no material foreseeable losses,on long-term
contracts . The company did not have any derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31% March, 2025.

The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies)
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries") with the understanding whether recorded in
writing or otherwise that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in
the notes to accounts no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies)including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties") with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise
that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provide under (a) &(b) above
contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared/ paid dividend during the year.
The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are applicable only to public

companies accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the
company.




IX.

Based on our examination which included test checks , the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been
preserved by the company as per statutory requirements for record retention.

For M.B Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
_—_ (Firm’s Registration No.100137W)

/ x_/""/-ﬂ“h" \ Q
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Sanjay Lunkad
Partner
(Membership No.048229)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25" August, 2025
UDIN: 25048229BMJBZF9067



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of R Mall Developers Private Limited of even date)

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members

of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, we report the

following:

(1) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment
Property.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment including investment property have been physically verified by
the management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The title deeds of the immovable property, as disclosed in note3 for the investment property in
the financial statements, are not held in the name of the company as mentioned below.

Description [ Gross Held in | Whether Period held- | Reason for not been held in |
of property | carrying | name of | promoter, indicate the name of the company
value director  or | range, where
their relative | appropriate
) or employee ~
Investment | 20,483 | Ariane No F Y 2006 — | Company is in the process
property Lakhs Orgachem till date of entering into an
Pvt Ltd. agreement with the land
owner granting  the
perpetual lease/
conveyance of the related
| | land |

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(i1) (a) The company is in the business of developing and mall renting services and, consequently,
does not hold any inventory other than consumables. The physical verification of inventory has
been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10 % or more were noticed.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees
five crores in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account of the Company does not arise.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our e\dmiuah ,ﬂ
of the records of the company, the company has made investments, provided guarantee il sé;.ur i, \
granted loans and. advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to compani¢s,| lintfted,

liability partnership and other parties in respect of which the requisite information is as be lrm._‘_ _,./ ' _{._»;!"'



(a) Based on the audit procedures carried by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to other entities during the year and the outstanding

balance of such loans as at March 31, 2025 are given below:"

Loans OCDs
| (Rsin Lakhs) | (Rs in Lakhs)
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the
year B
| Related Parties 3,480.00 27,500
Others 2,003.77 -
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in )
| respect of above cases
Related Parties - 27,500 |
| Others 2.003.77 - |

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the loans and the terms and conditions of granting of loans given during the year
are prima facie not prejudicial to the interests of the company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination
of the records of the company, in respect of loans granted by the company, the loans are granted
without specifying any repayment schedule are repayable back to the company on demand.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination
of the records of the company, in respect of loans granted by the company, the loans are granted
without specifying any repayment schedule and accordingly no loans have fallen due resulting in
no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination
of the records of the company, no loan granted by the company which have fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended, or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination
of the records of the company, in our opinion the company has not granted any loans and advances
in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms of period of
repayment except for the loans as mentioned below:

| ‘ Loans

(Rs in Lakhs)
Aggregate amount granted / provided during the vear - } -

' Repayable on Demand 3,480.00
Percentage of loans/advances & Investments in nature of loans to the total
loans / total investments | 10.55%

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted,
investments made and guarantees, and securities provided, as applicable.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amou, Tis

which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Compamm Acth EI"\.

the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to reportln |
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.



(vi) The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub
section (1) section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, for any of the products of the company.

(vil) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. Also refer note 35(ii) to the financial statements regarding management’s assessment

on certain matters relating to provident fund.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material Statutory dues which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes other than

Sr Name of the Nature of | Demanded Period to Which Forum where
No Statute Dues Amount (in the Amount relates | dispute is
lakhs) (Financial Year) Pending
1. | The Income Tax | Demand Notice 26551 12021-22 t0 2022-23 | CIT (A)
Act, 1961 u/s 147
o GST Act, 2017 | Order passed by 90.18 2017-18 Joint
2. Deputy Commissioners
Commissioner of State Tax
3. | GST Act,2017 | Order passed by | 283.26 2017-18 Joint
| Deputy Commissioners
Commissioner | of State Tax
4, GST Act, 2017 | Order passed by 856.58 2018-19 Joint
Deputy [ Commissioners
Commissioner of State Tax
|
5. GST Act, 2017 | Order passed by 209.62 | 2019-20 Joint
Deputy Commissioners
Commissioner of State Tax

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. Also refer Note 18
to the financial statements.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds afe 1*'113
short-term basis. ! ‘*.__



(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company did not
have subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries and joint ventures. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares / fully /
partly / optionally convertible debentures during the year.

(x1) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanation given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud
by the company or on the company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed
of any such case by the management.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by cost auditor/secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT —4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b), (¢) & (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvil) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and -t
immediately preceding financial year. / '

(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clat:i-""'
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. N, g



(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the =~
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) As at the balance sheet date the company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xx) of the order is not
applicable.

M.B Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration NoA00137W)

! .
B

Sanjay Lunkad
Partner
(Membership No.048229)
Place: Mumbai
Date: 25" August, 2025
UDIN: 25048229BMJBZF9067



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of R Mall Developers Private Limited of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of R Mall Developers
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to_provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fisiarcial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prmuflples A 0;/
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and firodedures)
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and rm ﬂl}qeﬂuﬂ )
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thzar”
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance



with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

. For M..B Agrawal & Co.
OV N Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No{]00137W)

\ | |
\ ] |
\ / If
N\ / {f
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Sanjay Lunkad
Partner
(Membership No.048229)
Place: Mumbai
Date: 25" August, 2025
UDIN: 25048229BMJBZF9067



R Mall Developers Private Limited
Balance Sheet

as at March 31, 2025

~ ZinLakhs
3 As at As at
Fatliculpr Hote March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS ]
Non-current Assets .
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 2.851.80 1,180.11
(b) Investment Properties 3 41,192.46 42,252.66
:“75‘)" Intangible Assets 4 3474 :__ 4340
(d) _Capital Work In Progress 5 68.64 157.13
e Right-of-use asset é 262.70 i
{f)_._Financial Assets .
o ()_Investments e 7 27.500.00 -
(i) Other Financial Assets 8 5719.24 2,303.16
g Other Non-current Assets ? 165.82 :::::M "6 98
. [h)  Non-current Tax Assets 7.126.97 4,817.75
. Total Non-current Assets 84,922.37 50,916.19
Current Assets .
{9} Inventories . o ——b 111.42 111.68
(b} Financial Assets
{i) __Trade Receivables » . 12 | 2,247 .63 1.957.28
(i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 138 3,212.82 2,948.66
(i) Loans ) 14 _ 2,003.77 2,550.00
i liv) OtherFinancictAssets 15 687987  36919.08
(c) Other Current Assets . 16 1,071.57 926.83
Total Current Assets 15,527.08 45,413.53
Total Assets 1,00,449.45 96,329.72
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY .
___{a) _Equity Share Capital - - o 17 409.58 20482
(b) Other Equity 18 (37,926.75) (44,887.81)
Total Equity (37.517.22) (44,682.99)
'LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
(a) _ Financial Liabilities E o 1
T T ) Bormowings T 19 _ 1.17.983.78 1,21,645.94
(i) _Lease Liabilities 6 11791 -
(b) Provisions 2 28.65 22.37
___[c) Defered Tox Liabilty nef) 10 178.68 61.80
(d) __Other non current liabilities 21 195.68 334.47
__ _Total Non-current Liabilities 1,18,504.70 1,22,064.58
Current Liabilities '
(a) Financial Liabilities =
7 f) Borowings 22 1,898.83 3,106.70
(i) Lease Liabilities [ | 163.06 -
(i} Trode Payables 23 i . e
. - totat outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises | 334.37 123.88
_ fofal ouistongmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 2.069.91 2.626.52
small enterprises
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 24 9,461.42 8,773.97
(b)  Other Current Liabilifies 25 96912 907.95
—__le) _Provisions 2 94 1537
. [d) Current Tax Liabiities 4,556.12 - 3,393.74
Total Current Liabilities 19,441.97 - 18,948.13
Total Liabilities 1,37,966.67 1.41,012.71
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,00,449.45 96,329.72

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For M.B. Agrawal & Co.
Cha fred Accountants
Firn} Registration No.: 100137W

Sanjay Lunkad
Partner
Membership No: 48229

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
R Mall Developers Private Limited
CIN: U45201MH2006PTC163273

wis

Jayshree Taori  Yogesh Bafna
Director Director
DIN: 03577005 DIN: 02107767

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025



R Mall Developers Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2025

o %in Lakhs
: For the year ended For the year ended
faticyine Mot March 31, 2025 Mareh 31,2024
Income
Revenue from Operations 27 28,433.18 25,002.78
e QMnerincome - 677.02 _968.49
" T 2911020 2597127
Expenses —_—— . ST _
Employee Benefits Expenses 29 986.14 984.38
Finance Costs - - 30 A 10,694.41 885425
. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense e 31 - 1,577.39 o 1,380.21
) Other Expenses R - 7,423.97 7.691.34
Total Expenses_ . L B 20.681.91 18,910.18
Profit / (Loss) before tax : e ——— ., owm  m e 0w 842829 . .1,061.09_
Tax (Expenses)/Credit I - ,
Current tax T . B o . . 1,162.39 1,022.76 -
Deferredtox VT - 115.67 41.77
Total Tax (Expenses)/Credit _ e 1,278.06 1,064.53
Profit / (Loss) for the year - . ] 7.150.23 5.996.56
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) .
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement Gain / {Loss) on defined benefit plan 4.79 7.73
Income tax impact } | (1.21) LS
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
_s_libsequeni periods, net of tax 3:38 5.78
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 7,153.81 6.002.34
Earnings Per Equily Share (EPS) of Class A Shares
Basic and Diluted (%) (Face Valve 10 Per _{hure) 33 sz Il 28213
Earnings Per Equily Share (EPS) of Class B Shares 33 204.62 282.13

Basic and Diluted (%) (Face Value 10 Per Share)

As per our report of even date
For M.B. Agrawal & Co.
ccountants

fion No.: 100137W
Sanjay Lunkad

Partner

Membership No: 48229

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DIN:

Heen \Q
rm'i Yo

Director

DIN: 02107767

Jaysh
Director

03577005

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025

R Mall Developers Private Limited
CIN: U45201MH2006PTC163273

Bafna



R Mall Developers Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

for the vear ended March 31, 2025

. ZinLokhs
Forithe year ended For the year ended
EoNisuIR T T Match o1, 2024
(A) Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax L= 842829 _ 7,061.09
Adjustments fo reconcile profit before fax fo net cash flows:
___ Depreciation and Amorfisation Expenses 1,677.39 138021
Reversal of excess provision for doubtful debts = {14.21) {91.94)
Finance income - o — (210,61}  (489.48)
Sundry balances w/back o (0.01) _{225.47)
Profit on sale of investments (212.90) -
Finance cost 1069441 8846.00
Loss on sale of fixed assets . — 2446
Provision for Gratuity  ~ 7.16 9.68
Operating profit before working capital changes 20,269.52 16,514.55
Changes in working capital: |
Increase /{decrease) in Trade Payables __ . (346.11) (78.16)
.. Increcse /(decrease) in Other Current Financial Licbilities i 65903 ~ 837.56_
____Increase /(decrease) in Other Current and Non Current Liabilities . e [77.62) (337.33)
Increase /{decrease] in Provisions 2.32) 10.09
Increase/(Decrease) in loans o = (83.,853.00}
. lIncrease|/decrease in Trade Receivables D (276.14) -~ 2906.86
. lincrease)/decrease in Inventories _______‘___ R 0.26 (111.68)
—Increasel/decrease in Other Current and Non-current Assets - - ) (132.78) _ (389.75)
(Increase)/decrease in Current and Non-current Financial Assets . | 29,844.58 (38,222.41)
I 29,668.92 (1.19.237.82)
Cash flows from operating activities ! L 49,938.44 (1.02,723.27)
Less : Income tax (Paid) e ' {2,226.29) (1,094.39)
'Net cash flows from operating activities (A) e — 4771215 _ (1,03,817.66)
(B) Cash flows from investing activities - = .y
Payment towards purchase of property, plant and eguipment & investment property i - (2,007.53} (417.44)
___Sdle of fixed assets o = 447 .40
__ Sdle of Investments ] - 15467 -
Purchase of intangible assets 2 = = e (47.75)
Inter corporate deposit given ~ {2.003.77) {2,550.00)
Inter corporate deposit given received back . e ~ 2,550.00 -
_ Proceeds from sale / [purchase) of investment B - (27.51275) -
Redemption/{increase| of bank deposits - (330114 2,101.55
o Interest received (finance income) - o - - 290.32 489.48
'Net cash flows from investing activities (B) . - (31,830.22) 23.24
(C) Cash flows from financing activities |
Finance cost paid ; - (10,605.03) (8,810.08}
Payment of lease liabilities o {los81) -
. Proceeds from Non-current borrowings [ 29,000.00 1,02,500.00
—___{Repayment) of Non-cument borrowings . {32,063.23) .. |8,505.43)
__Proceeds / [Repayment] of Current borrowings (net) e {1.731.00) 1,731.00
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (15,503.07) 86,915.49
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) W - 37886 (16,878.93)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,850.13 18,729.06
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,228.99 1,850.13
Zin Lakhs
q Fot the year ended For the year ended
Patfeviars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Notes to Cash flow Statement : ) I
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following : .
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13) . a 3,212.82 2.948.66
Book Overdraft (refer note 22) (983.83) (1.098.53]
Balances as per statement of cash flows 2,228.99 1,850.13
v TRIN
o SN
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R Mall Developers Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended March 31, 2025
Notes:

(i) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' set outin Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows.
(i) Disclosure of changes in liabiliies arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, are given

below:
% in Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 Net Cash Flows Others | March 31, 2025
Non-current borrowings (Incl. Current Maturity) . 121,923 (3,063.23) 3890 1,18,898.78
Cunent borowings (Excl. book overaraft) 1.731.00 (1.731.00) - 5
Total 1,23,654.11 (4,794.23) 38.90 | 1,18,898.78
Zin Lakhs
As af As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 Net Cash Flows Others March 31, 2024
Non-current borrowings (Incl. Curent Maturity) i 27,9290 _ . 9399457 _[0.5¢) 1,21,923.11
Current borrowings (Excl. book overdraft) i - 1,731.00 = 1,731.00
Total 27,929.10 95,725.57 (0.56) | 1,23,654.11

As per our report of even date
For M.B. Agrawal & Co.
red Accountants
egistration No.: 100137W

Sanjay Lunkad

@
Pariner ‘? .................... ) v)
Membership No: 48229 Qy\‘MUMBAL,/ &
790 S

— S A
\’(’1,“} A{‘C'\\N/
g

.

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025

For and on behdlf of the Board of Directors
R Mall Developers Private Limited
CIN: U45201MH2006PTC163273

o

Jayshree Taori
Director
DIN: 03577005

sh Bafna
Director
DIN: 02107767

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025



R Mall Developers Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2025

% in Lakhs
Other Equity
J Fauly. Shcee’ Caphs Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Total other Equity
No. of Shares Arnsnt Securities | Capital Reiai.ned equity
Premium | Reserve Earnings

Balance asatMarch 31,2023 | 40,94,284 | 40943,  2,770.45 - 28,828.68 31,599.13 32,008.56
Treasury Shares (20,47,142) {204.71) - (82,557.30}) - (82,557.30) (82,762.0?)
Shares Pending issue on account of 1,000 0.10 - - - 2 0.10
merger ~ L E
Opening impact On Account of Business - - - (14.69)+ (14.49) (14.69)
combination , 3 ‘ i
Consideration payable on account of S N A O | {0.10) (0.10)
merger* ‘ , :
Restatement of Equity share capital on - - - i B -
Account of ChangeinHolding | | A .
_QI‘__AEEOﬂ of Business combination* | - | - - b10000; o [17.20) 82.80 82.80
Profit/(Loss) for the period - - - T 3-9%’_55 5,996.56 5,996.56
Other Comprehensive Income/(ioss) for I T T ;
the period | n o
Remeasurement Gain/{loss) on defined - = - 578 5.78 5.78
benefit pla_n net of tax | ————
Jotal C Comprehenswe Income for the T - | - 5,985.15 4,085.18 6,085.15
petiod ; :
Balance as at March 31, 2024 20,48,142 | 204.82 | 277045  (82,457.40) 3479914 . (44,887.81)  (44,682.99)
Treasury Shares Swapped with Holding 20,47,142.00 204.71 - 82,557.30 - 82,557.30 ! 82,762.01
company Shares | o i ] ‘
Cancellation of shares in holding | - % - ' - (82,750.05) (82.750.05) (82,750.05)
company i L ;
Profit/(Loss) for the period - = - - 7.150.23 7.150.23 7.150.23
Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) for n l =
the period o _
Remeasurement Gain/(loss) on defined - - - 3.58 3.58 3.58
_benefit plan, net of tax I
Total Comprehensive Income for the - 4 E - (75.596.24), (75,596'.24): (75,596.24)
period o ; _‘ :
Balance as at March 31, 2025 40,95,284 409.53 i 2,770.45 | 99.90 ' (40,797.10) (37.926.75) [37,517.22)1‘

Notes:

(i) For cancellation of shares in holding company refer note no 54.

(ii) There were no changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors.

(iii) There were no changes in Other Equity due to changes in accounting policies or prior period errors.

As per our report of even date
For M.B. Agrawal & Co.
Chayiered Accountants

Sanjay Lunkad
Partner

jegisfrcﬁ@w 100137W T

Membership No: 48229

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
R Mall Developers Private Limited
CIN: U45201MH20046PTC163273

@‘(’
.laysg]'ao'ri

Yogesh Bafna
Director Director
DIN: 03577005 DIN: 02107767

Place: Mumbai }
Date: August 25, 2025



R Mall Developers Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

1A. Corporate information

R Mall Developers Private Limited {'the Company'} is a private company, incorporated in India under provisions
of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is situated at R City Mall, 3 Floor,
Mall Management Office, 146, LBS Marg, Ghatkopar West, Mumbai- 400086. The Company is a joint venture
between Runwal Developers Private Limited and Reco Ghatkopar Pte Ltd. The Company is engaged in the
business of owning, managing, running, maintaining and developing malls.

1B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to dll the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

a. Basis of preparation

i. Compliance with iInd AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 133 {the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets
and liabilities.

ii. Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value.

b. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The board of directors assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. Refer note 40 for segment information.

¢. Foreign currency translation

i. Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency'). The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee {INR), which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

>




R Mall Developers Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are franslated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the fransaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the franslation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are excluding taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
enlity and specific criteric have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below. The
Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

For revenue from property leased out under operating lease, refer accounting policy mentioned in point f
‘Leases’. License fee/lease income and income incidental to it, arising from operating leases on investment
properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms, unless there is another systematic basis
which is more representative of the time pattern of the lease. Difference between income recognised as
aforesaid and billed to customers is recognised as lease equalization reserve. Further, revenue share income is
recognized based on monthly/quarterly/annual confirmation; of sales made in the respective period, received
from retailers as per the contractual arrangement. (Also refer Note 8 to the Financial Statements)

Revenue from sale of services comprising of maintenance income and other services provided to customers and
are recognised on rendering of services as per the terms and conditions agreed with the customers.

Other operating income comprises of income from car parking, promotion and signage income and such other
items and are recognised as per the terms and conditions agreed with the customers.

e. Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income of the current period
based on the applicable income tax rates adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either fo s¢
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.




R Mall Developers Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

f. Leases

As a lessor

Rental Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the Balance Sheet based on their nature.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease payments
for the new lease. Lease deposits received are financial instruments (financial liability) and are measured at fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the fair value and the nominal value of deposits is considered
as rent in advance and recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis. Unwinding of discount is freated
as interest expense (finance cost) for deposits received and is accrued as per the EIR method.

g. Properly, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ (losses).

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are
disclosed as ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written down value method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, which are in line with Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of
the assets. The Company has used the following lives to provide depreciation and amortisation:

' Category Useful lives
(in years)

| Investment Properties — Building ) 60

Plant and Machinery 15
" Electrical Fittings 10 B
| Vehicles . 8 )
' Office Equipment 5

Office Furniture 10 2 e
' Computers 3




R Mall Developers Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition / installation till the date the assets
are sold or disposed of.

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition/installation.

The carrying amount of an asset is written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount if the carrying amount of
the asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The estimated useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an
intfangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss, if
any.

Software and Trademark is amortised at straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

i. Investment properties

Development rights and building, that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that is not in use by the Company, is classified as Investment Property. Investment property is measured initially at
its acquisition cost, including related fransaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an Investment property is
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The carrying amount of investment property
is reviewed periodically for impairment based on internal and external factors. An impairment loss is recognised
wherever the carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the asset's net selling price and value in use.

Investment properties (Building) are depreciated on a pro-rata basis on the written down value method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are in line with Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, in order fo reflect
the actual usage of the assets.

Development rights and TDR purchased are considered as part of Land (which is in process of being transferred
in Company’s name) and are stated at cost.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Company in negotiating and arranging an operating lease shall be added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as
the lease income.

Depreciation is provided on the written down value method to allocate the cost of assets, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives.

i- Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less cost of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
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R Mall Developers Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

k. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

I. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.

m. Other financial assets

i. Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

« those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contfractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss or other
comprehensive income.

ii. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

ii. Subsequent measurement

a. Financial assets at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in Other Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

b. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
’rhe corrying omoun’r are taken Through OCl|, excep1 for the recogni’rion of impairmen’r gains or losses, in’reresT




R Mall Developers Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

‘c. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when:
* The Company has fransferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

* Retains the contfractual rights fo receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where
the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control
of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

v.Impairment of financial assets

Vi,

The Company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Note 32(b) details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Income Recognition

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within
other income. Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss as part of other income.

Interestincome is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).




R Mall Developers Private Limited
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n. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

i. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity insfruments issued by the entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability and
an equity instrument,

ii. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost uniess at initial recognition, they are
classified at fair value through profit and loss.

iii. Subseguent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair
value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, unless it is in the nature of equity contribution
by parent.

v. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is
a legally enforceabile right fo offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
orredlise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

o. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of fransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
inferest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished and the consideration paid, is recognised in statement of profit or loss as Other income / (expense).

Substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability are accounted for
the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

p. Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

q. Trade payables and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. Trade and other financial liabilities are presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amorfised cost using the effective interest method.

r. Provisions and contingent liabilities
i. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. These are reviewed at each reporting period and reflect the best current estimate.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an ouftflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liabilities. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

ii. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate
of the amount cannot be made.

s. Employees Benefits

i. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the repgnf__i___rl
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. /Q,;\f‘ ]
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ii.

i,

Other long-ferm employee benefits

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value
of expected future payments o be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields
at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period, regardiless of when
the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obliaations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
a) Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan") covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an
amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Gratuity liability is a
defined benefit obligation and is computed on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an actuary
appointed for the purpose as per projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on Government bonds that have
terms approximating fo the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other Comprehensive Income.
They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately the Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.

b) Defined contribution plans

Contribution towards provident fund for all employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contibutions made on a monthly basis.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction,

net of tax, from the proceeds.
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u. Earnings per share

i. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
¢ the profit aftributable to owners of the Company.

» by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year, if any

ii. Diluted earnings per share

e Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

¢ the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

v. Valudgtion of consumable inventory
o Consumable inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net readlisable value (NRV).

w. Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 'lakhs' as
per the requirement of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.

x. Ciritical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the group's
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements
is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line
item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates are:

¢ Estimation of useful lives of Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and Investment Property
{Refer note 2, 3 and 4)

e Estimation for fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities (Refer note 43)

o Estimation of taxes (Refer note 10)

o Estimation of provisions and contingencies (Refer note 38)

o Estimation of fair value of Investment properties (Refer note 3)
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3 Investment Properties

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

2 in Lakhs
Development Rights Building
Particulars Total
i. Gross Carrying Value ,
Balance as at April 1, 2023 | 20,482.57 32,437.07 | 52,919.64
Additions - - -
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments - = =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 20,482.57 32,437.07 52,919.64
Additions - - .
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments - - -
... BalanceasatMarch3l, 2025 ] 20.482.57 32,437.07 52,919.64
ii. Accumulated Depreciation |
Balance as at April 1, 2023 - 9.552.50 9.552.50
Depreciation charge for the year - 11448 1,114.48
Disposal / Adjustments e
Balance as at March 31, 2024 " Em e e mEm : 10.666.98 10.666.98
Depreciation charge for the year e - 1.060.20 1.060.20
Disposal / Adjustments _ 8 E =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 - 11,727.18 , 11,727.18
Net Carrying Amount =
As at March 31, 2024 N e 20.482.57 21,770.09 ! 42,252.66
As at March 31, 2025 [ 20,482.57 20,709.89 41,192.46

Investment properties pertains to Shopping Mall named R City located in Mumbai. Further, the Company had acquired Development Rights (TDR) for
construction of Commercial property (R City Mall). Company is in the process of entering into an agreement with the land owner granting the
perpetual lease/Conveyance of the related land.

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for investment properties
Zin Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income from investment properties (Refer note 27) e 17,983.81
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income . 9.654.85
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 8,328.96

Depreciation . 106020 1,114.48

Profit from investment pro;ggﬁgg — i B o20neN 7.214.48

Investment Properties having carrying value of ¥ 41,192.46 lakhs is hypothecated with the bank.

Leasing arrangements

The Company has given mall premises on lease which includes both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are renewable for
further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses. The rental income in respect of cancellable leases is disclosed as
'License fees and rental income in note 27. With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:

T in Lakhs
Particulars asat s
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within one year == - o 8.567.88 ..7.28435
Later than one year but not later than 5 years e 5.753.17 5,652.16
Total 14,321.05 12,936.51
Fair Value of Investment Properties

The fair value of the Company's investment property at the end of the period have been determined on the baosis of valuation carried out by
independent valuers registered as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers of Valuation) Rules, 2017. The calculation has been
conducted through a "Sale comparison technique”. Under this approach the market value has been obtained by considering value of comparable
property having same utility & attraction. Under this method average rate for estimated leasable area has been obtained from various sale instances
for similar properties after adjusting it for various factors as size, discount, rates, local atfributes, good frontage positive and negative factors associated
with the property under valuation. All resulting fair value estimates for investment are included in level 2

Total fair value of Investment Property is 2 2,61,613 Lakhs. (Previous year ¥ 2,55,400 Lakhs) as per valuation report.

Contingent rent recognised as income during the period ¥934.24 Lakhs. (Previous year ¥ 996.40 Lakhs)

O M,
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4 Intangible Assets

¥ in Lakhs
Farticulars Trademarks Software Total
i. GrossCarryingValve — N '
Balance as at April 01, 2023 I v 0.36 4.14 | 4.50
Addiitions e e L | 47.75 | 47.75
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments B - i =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.36 51.89 52.25
Additions -
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 0.36 51.89 5225
ii. Accumulated Depreciation e i i i
Balance as at April 01, 2023 R 0.25 3.55 3.80
_Depreciation charge for the year 0.01 5.04 5.05
Disposal / Adjustments !
_Balance as at March 31, 2024 ] - ! 0.26 1 8.59 8.85
Depreciation charge for the Year = u 1 - 8.66 ! 8.66
Disposal / Adjustments - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 0.26 17.25 17.51
Net Carrying Amount —— [ —
AsofMarch3], 2024 "~ T R 0.10 43.30 | 43.40
As at March 31, 2025 0.10 34.64 34.74
5 Capital Work in Progress
_ 2 in Lakhs
g = < P ] Plant and Furniture and Office
Description of Assets Buildings | Electrical Flﬁmgs; EaUibmmant Fixtures Equisments: | Total
Cost o . | !
Balance as at April 01, 2023 _ = - L - B - e
Additions — - 2478 126.25 | 1.04 5.06 | 157.13
Capitalised during the year - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 24.78 126.25 1.04 5.06 ! 157.13
Additions 22.83 20.00 7.74 | - 6,08 ¢ 56.65
Capitalised during the year - (11.22) (133.55) 0.34}) 10.03) £ t-!45.14)9:
Balance as at March 31, 2025 | 2283 33.56 0.44 0.70 1.1 68.64
Ageing Schedule:
a. Asat March 31, 2025 T in Lakhs
_ Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital Work in-Frogress Less than 1 year ' 1-2 Years 2-3 Years B _!_ho_n Total
o =11 - = W J 3 Years
Projects in progress |
Building | 22.83 | [ 22.83
Electrical Fittings _ 20.00 | 13.56. - - 33.56
Plant and Equipment | 0.44 - - 0.44
Furniture and Fixtures | - 0.70 ! - - B 070
Office Equipments . 608 5,03 - - RAKE
Total 26.52 19.29 - - 48.64
b. As at March 31, 2024 Z in Lakhs
| ! - Amc_:_ulnf in CWIP for a pelrigd_o! s " |
CaptioiIsin Fpgrese  Lless than 1 year | 1-2 Years ! 2-3 Years i M; rYee:::n Total
[Projectsin progress o ,_~|~ N [~ [ 1
—Building = R Sl - - = J =
... Blectical Fittings _____ =] 24.78
____Plant and Equipment 126.25
, ..fumniture and Fixtures - 1.04
. Office Equipments 5.06

Total
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6 Right-of-use asset

a)

b)

2 in Lakhs

Particulars Office Premises
i.  Gross Canying Value -

Balance as at April 1,2023 = L e o e il

‘Addifions A -

Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments

Balance as at April 1, 2024 =

Additions - 362.72

Disposal / Discarded / Adjustiments

. Balance as at March 31,2025 362.72
ii. Accumulated Depreciation ) |
Balance as at April 1, 2023 -
Depreciation charge for the year -
Disposal / Adjustments =
Balance as at April 1, 2024 -
Depreciation charge for the year 100.02

Disposal / Adjustments -

Balance as at March 31,2025 100.02
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2025 262.70

The Company has taken office premises on lease from 01 July 2024. The lease arrangement is for a period of 60 months with & non-cancellable
period of 36 months.

Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet

The Balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Zin Lakhs
1 As at As at
foicvia March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Right-of-use asset | Sl U=
Office premises . 262.70 -
Total 262.70 -
in Lakhs
Particulars As it A

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

Lease liabilities

Non-current 11?9] _ -
Current 163.06 -
Totat | 280.97 -
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
The Statement of Profit and Loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
% in Lakhs
As at As at

LG March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Depreciafion charge of right-of-use assets

Officepremises _ — _ T T 5 10002 -

Total | 100.02 -
~%in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

I March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Interest expense (finance costs) | 2206 =

Total | 22.06 -

- The lease payments are discounted at 9.00% p.a. rate of interest based on market rate.
- Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising discounted lease rentals.
- Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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7 Non-Current Iinvestments

= ?in takhs
. As at As af
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unquoted Investments (fully paid)
a Investments measured at Cost -
i. InOptionally Convertible Debentures of Fellow Subsidiary Company
Aethon Developers Private Limited

27,500 debentures of Rs.100,000 each £ 20000
Total of Investments measured at Cost 27,500.00
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 27,500.00

Terms of OCD:

(i) The OCD shall be redeemed / converted by the issuer at the expiry of five years from date of issuance. The Issuer has a right but not obligation to
redeem / convert the OCD after 12 months from date of issuance
(if) couponrate of 9% p.a. at the discretion of the Issuer subject to the Company having sufficient Distributable Cash Flows.

8 Other Non-current Financial Assets

g in Lakhs
L As at As at
Paie March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise, carried at amortised cost)
To parties other than related parties = = |
Fixed deposits
_{With remaining maturity for more than twelve months) R 1182500
Security deposits T “_ | 2_?'5':2'2 = 22325
Leose Equdlisation Reserve = | 2971 254.91
Total | 5,719.24 2,303.16
9 Other Non-current Assets
Zin Lakhs
= As at As at
Fatficulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Capital advances 165.82 150.00
Prepaid expenses = 11.98
Total 165.82 161.98
Capital advance includes Rs.150 lakhs(PY RS.150 lakhs) paid to related Party
10 Income Taxes
a. The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2025
~ %inLakhs
As at As at
naicpidss March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income Tax Expense :
Current Tax: ; 1 L 1|
Current Income Tax Charge 1_1:1 62.39) (1,022.76)
(1,162.39) (1.022.7¢)
Deferred Tax: o
In respect of currerli Beriod origination {116.88] (43.72)
{116.88) (43.72)
Total Income Tax Expense (1,279.27) (1,066.48)
b. Major Components of Deferred Tax Liability / Asset (net)
m?“in Lakhs
. As at As at
Rerfigulors March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Liabilities e e
__..Provision for DoubtfulReceivables e ] 101,64 . 4822
LiovisionforGrataty = 896 . __ . _..903
ProvisonforBonus e - 066 083
_ Provision for compensated absences 055 ... ..046
Unpaid MSME creditors during the year 042 .. 035
Difference in carrying amount of car parking equipment as per income tax and books of 0.06 -
Qccounts
Gross Deferred Tax Assets  —_ ~ " T T T T T T T T T T 11229 58.89
LoLeanProcessing Fees ' 108.74 o
Impact of Straightlined Lease Rentals 182.23 120.69
) ] . 290.97 120.69
‘Net Deferred Tax Assels/ (Liabilities) ﬂ (178.68) (61.80)




R Mall Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025
10 Income Taxes (Contd...)
c. Movement in Deferred Tax Liability / Asset (net) for the year ended March 31, 2025:

T in Lakhs

Al Recognised in P&L Recognised in OCI !

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025
Tax effect of items consfituling Deferred Tax Assefs: =
Provision for Doubtful Receivables N 48.22 53.42 - 101.64
___ Provision for Gratuity 9.03 [ L T, 0 1) 8.96
Provison for Bonus 0.83 ) ._{0.17) 0.66
____Provision for compensated absences 0464 0091 8256
Unpaid MSME creditors duringtheyear ¢ 035 . %07 0.42
Difference in carrying amount of car parking
equipment as perincome tax and books of
accounts - 0.06 - 0.06
T [ 58.89 54.61 . (1.21) 112.29
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Loan Processing Fees - 108.74 108.74
Impact of Straightlined Lease Rentals 120.69 61.54 182.23
1208 170.28 e - 290.97
Net Deferred Tax Assels (61.80) {115.47) (1.21) (178.68)
c. Movement in Deferred Tax Liability / Asset (net) for the year ended March 31, 2024:
g in Lakhs
Particulars m:‘;?i 2023 I Recognised in P&L Recognised in OCI Murc:?;,f 2024
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Assefs: |
Provision for Doubftful Receivables - . 48.22 . - 48.22
Provision for Gratuity } . 877 2.21 | (1.95) | 92.03
Provison for Bonus 1.39 {0.56) ' - 0.83
Provision for compensated absences 0.62 __{0.14). e 0.46
Unpaid MSME crediitors during theyeor = 035! 0.35
e e et e e e e 090000 N84E L (.95)) - 58.8¢
Jax effect of tems constitufing Deferred Yax Uabilities: | | .\ ] .
Difference in carrying amount of car parking ] 0.1 (0.11}) - ' =
equipment as per income tax and books of ‘ !
____accounts — - e S i . |
... Impact of Straightlined Lease Renfals ..} 7697 4372 - 120.69
i 7109 e 43.60 : - - 120.69
Net Deferred Tax Assets (18.09) (41.77)! (1.95) | (61.80)

d. Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense and the Accounting Profit multiplied by applicable tax rate :
This note presents the reconciliation of Income Tax charged as per the applicable tax rate specified in the Income Tax Act, 1961 & the actual
provision made in the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024 with breakup of differences in Profit as per the Financial Statements and as per
Income Tax Act, 1961.

.. Rinlakhs

Particulars For the year ended Forthe year ended
March 31, 2025 Morch 31, 2024

Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss - 7,061.09
Tax Rate for Corporate Entity as per Income Tax Act, 1961 ‘ 25.168%
Income tax using the Company's domestic taxrate e — e 1,777.18)
Tax Effect of; —
_Permanent difference 907.95
Others . o869 (197.29)
Income Tax recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss at effective rate {1,279.27) (1,066.48)

e. Tax Rate for Corporate Entity :
The Company has decided to opt for the reduced corporate tax rates, Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax as per
the provisions of the relevant section.
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11 Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Zin Lakhs
i As at As at
Haeviaes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Stock of Consymables 11142 111.68
Total 111.42 111.68

12 Trade Receivables
g in Lakhs
As at As at
paic e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured, consideredgood 103448 95220
Unsecured, considered good . _ . ... . e 121315 142315
Unsecured, Credit Impaired e ) 403.86 -
e o e R B 2,651.49 2,375.35
Allowance for Credit Losses o {403.86) (418.07)
Total 2,247.63 1,957.28
Notes:
i) The fair value of Trade receivables are approximately the carrying value presented.
i)y Also refer note 41 for disclosures related to revenue and note 49 for ageing of receivables.
i)  Also refer note 34 for fransaction with related parties.
13 Cash and Cash equivalents
Zin Lakhs
As at As at

Particuiars

Maich 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Balances with banks

In current accounts o I ul _4_622 160698
_._Fixed deposits (with original maturity for three months or less)(refer note (i below) . + 3,168.28 - o1338.25
Cashonhond _ e . e 3.62 3.43
Total 3,212.82 2,948.66
Notes :

i} Shori-term deposits are made for varying periods between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the

Company and earns interest at the respective Fixed deposit rates.
i) The fair value of Fixed deposits are approximately the carrying value presented.

14 Loans

Particulars

As of
March 31, 2025

g in Lakhs

As af
March 31, 2024

(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise, camied at amortised cost)
Inter Corporate Deposits given
To Related Parties

2,003.77

2,550.00

_To other fhon Relate

2,003.77

2,550.00

Note:
i} Inter corporate deposits given to related parties are repayable on demand. (refer note 34)

i} Inter corporate deposits given to parties other thanrelated parties are interest bearing. (refer note 28)
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R Mall Developers Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

for the vear ended March 31, 2025

15 Other Cumrent Financial Assets

Zin Lakhs
As at As at
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) S
Torelated parties e e,
Security Depdsits N L= . o 3,825.00 -
Jo parties other than related parties = = S S B . e s e e
Security Deposits (refer note (il below) . __ __ o . 200492 3600000
Lease equalisation . R A N T W A S et 2, 42696 . 224.61
JInterest accrued butnotdve et e o e o e M e e T R i 398 . 8369
Margin Money with Banks (Fixed Deposit) 619.01 2. 02532
Receivables fromrelatedparty | = 85.46
Total 6,879.87 36,919.08
Note:
i) Security deposits are towards utility deposits, eamest money deposits and towards other deposits which are repayable on demand
i} The fair value of Other Current Financial Assets are approximately the camying value presented.
16 Other Current Assets
Zin Lakhs
As at As at
Fiie plexs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) .. N '
Advance against Goods/Expenses (refer note below) - S -2 344.77
Balances with statutary authorities e N o osl28t 51281
Prepaidexpenses 7418 ..6598
Ofther advances a8 LT . 327
1,071.57 926.83

Note:

Advances against Goods/Expenses are towards purchase commitments, are non - interest bearing in nature ond shall be settled against future
purchase of such Goods / Services
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R Mall Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

17 Share Capital

Zin Lakhs
Particulars iy As gl
B March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Authorised Share Capital e
10,500,000 (31 March 2024: 10,500,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each of ClassA 1,0000 1,050.00
1,500,000 (31 March 2024: 1,500,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each of Class B - 150.00 15000
Total - i 1,200.00 1,200.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up equity shares P | L —
4,001,000 (3] March 2024: 4,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up of Class A ; o ...40000,
24,284 (31 March 2024: 94.284) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- eoch fully paidup of ClassB . ___ I ] S )
Less Treasury shares o A - __[(204.71)
Add: Shares pending issue on account of Merger = = 0.10
Total 409.53 204.82
a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.
T in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amougt

At the beginning of the year - .

Equity Share Class A o . 20,01.000 _____40,00,000 400.00

Equity Share Class B L 47.142 94,284 9.43

Add :Issued during the year 1,000

Treasury shares N ! ’

_Equity Share Class A 20,00,000 {20,00,000) (200.00)

_Equity Share Class B 47,142 (47.142) (4.71)

Shares pending issue on account of Merger _{1.000) 1,000 0.10

Outstanding at the end of the year B e ‘

Equity Share Class A 40,01,000.00 400.10 20,01,000.00 200.10

‘Equify Share Class B 94,284.00 9.43 47,142.00 472

Note

During the year ended March 31, 2025, 1000 Equity shares (Class A) alloted to Mr. Sandeep Runwal towards consideration for merger of Avalor

Developers Private Limited

b. Terms / rights attached to equity shares

i}  The Company has two classes of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share i.e. Class A and Class B.
i) Dividend/Buyback/ Liquidation rights of the owners of Equity Shares Class A shall be as per the Articles of Association. Only Equity Shares of

Class A shall have one vote per share.

iy Dividend/Buyback/ Liquidation rights of the owners of Equity Shares of Class B shall be as per the Articles of Association. Equity shares Class B

shall not have any voting rights,

iv) The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors if any, is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

c. Treasury shares in previous year represent 20,00,000 class A Equity shares at a Value of Rs. 200 lakhs and 47,142 Class B equity shares at value of
Rs.4.7Hakhs were held by Avalor Developers Private Limited (which was merged with the company). These shares were transferred by Avalor
Developers Private limited to Runwal Developers Private limited on 12th July 2024. On Transfer by Avalor Developers Private Limited the freasury
shares have extinguished and the issued capital is accordingly represented.

d. Equity shares in the Company held by Holding company and shareholder holding more than 5% shares of the aggregate shared in the Company
AS af March 37, 2025 As ot March 31,2024
Particulars
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity Share Holders- Class A | : .
39.90,000 9978% e 92:30%
Eauity Share Holders- ClassB ] » S
Runwal Developers Private Limited 74,284 100.00% JAZA2 ... 100.00%

e. Details of shares held by promoters
: A5 &l March 31, 2025 _As ot March 31, 2024
Parficulars
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount |
Mr.Sandeep SRunwal 7,000 0.17% _| 3000 _ 0.15%
Total 7,000 0.17% 3,000 0.15%
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R Mall Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

18 Other Equity

M} in Lakhs
As at Asat
Fafisuime March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Securities preimum (Refer note (a) below) - g 277045 277045
Retained earnings {refer note (b) below) mm mm o= . (40,797.10)  34799.14
Capital reserve (Refer note (c) below) . 99.90 (82,457.40)
Total (37,926.75) (44,887.81)
~ ¥inLakhs
: As at As at
Ak, March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a. _Securities Premium (refer note (i) below) o s -
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,770.45 2,770.45
Balance at the end of the year 2,770.45 2,770.45
i} Securities premium is used fo record the premium on issue of shares. The premium is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
~ Zinlakhs
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

b. _Retained earnings (refer note (i) below)

.. Balance af the beginning of theyear 34,799.14 . »2;5}(,8‘2-@“:_6‘?

. Opening balance on account of business combination e 14.69)
Profit/{loss) for the year ~ o 5996.56
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) . & o 578
Balance on account of business combination e it ] R (17.20)

___.Canceliation of shares held in Holdingcompany " (82,750.05) -
Balance at the end of the year {40,797.10) 34,799.14

i) Retained eamnings represent the amount that can be distributed as dividend considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. During the

year, no dividends are distributed to the equity shareholders by the Company.

Zin Lakhs

== 1 As at As at

PR March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

c. Capital Reserve | ] ¥
Balance at the beginning of the year | ~ {82,457.40) s
Changes in equity share capital upon merger I (82,557.30)
Consideration payable on account of merger {0.10)
Change during the year on account treasury shares* 82,557.30 -
Changes in equity share capital upon merger of Avalor Developers Private Limited = 100.00
Balance at the end of the year | 99.90 (82,457.40)

* Refer note 17(c)




R Mall Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

19 Non-current Borrowings

. g in Lakhs
. As-at As at
feslicuire March 31, 2025 ch 31, 2024
Secured Borrowings -at amortised cost o
Jerm Loans e e - ,
From Banks E 1,19,330.83 1.22,316.26
1,19,330.83 1,22,316.26
___Amount disclosed under the head Current Borrowings (915.00) o l277.17)
Unamortised borrowing cost e ‘ (432.05} (393.15)
Total | 1,17,983.78 1,21,645.94

a Secured loans from Banks:
The loans are secured by way of equitable mortgage of Phase | & Phase 1l of R City Mall. Further, the loans have charge by way of assignment of
the balance future rent receivables from Licensees of the Malll, all insurance proceeds, both present and future. Also refer note 50.

20 Non-current Provisions

%in Lakhs
: As at As at
i 2 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee Benefits | T
Provision for Gratuity 2711 _21.09
Provision for Leave Encoshment 1.54 1.28
Total 28.65 22.37
21 Other non current liabilities
~ ZinLokhs
As at As at
!
o £ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred income on security deposit received SO 195.68 334.47
Total 195.48 334.47
22 Current Borrowings
~ Zinlokhs
| As al CAs of
Jfoticudn March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I _Lloans from Related Parties - Unsecured . I
_Inter corporate deposits A 5 1,731.00
{i. _Current maturities of Non-Currenf borrowings (refernote 19) :
From Banks - Secured — 715.00 27717
il Book Overdraft 983.83 " 7,09853
Total | 1,898.83 3,106.70
For transaction with related parties, refer note 34
23 Trade Payables
Zin Lakhs
As af As at
Pi
bl March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payables ] ] e
- To’rol ouf_gfcmqlng dues of m|cro cmd smoll enierpnses o ik 284 67 17099
- ToToI il outstanding due dues of credl’rors oiher Thon micro and small en’rerpnses et Tas o —uf 968 90 . 2,598.96
‘Retention money e ;
=~ Total ou?sjgpgimg duespf mlcro ond smoll enferprises . e 4970 1289
- ToToI I outstanding dues of crednors oiher thgn micro and smalll enterpnses -m 101.01 27.56
Jotal 2,404.28 2,750.40

Note:

i} The fair value of trade payables are approximately the carrying value presented.

i) Retention money is collected and retained based on various terms and conditions agreed upon with the contractors. In various instances,
retention money is payable when the milestone of the entire set of services is completed and that too with a covenant that it will be paid after a
period which ranges between 3 to 5 years, if no deficiency is found during this specified period towards the services which were rendered by
them. Hence, practically it is difficult to extract the ageing of retention money.

iy For Ageing of payables refer note 48 and for transactions with related parties & balances payable to Related Parties refer note 34.

iv) Details of dues fo Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enferprises Development Act, 2006. (refer note 47).
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for the year ended March 31. 2025

24 Other Current Financial Liabilities

~ Zinlakhs
: As at As at
Farteulee March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
To parties other than related parties R
Salary and bonus payable = . R A - 1363 o 11.94
Security Deposits from Occupants/Licensees 9.418.71 8,759.17
Inferest accrued but not due 28.42 -
Capital creditors ‘ 0.66 2.87
Total 9.461.42 8,773.97
Note:
The fair value of Other Current Financial Liabilities are approximately the carrying value presented.
25 Other Current Liabilities
_ %inLaokhs
As of As at
rrieolars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
To parties other than related parties . T s
Statutory dues payable N 1300.13 402.76
Advance from customers 31725 235.93
Deferred income on security deposit received N R 311.22 230.87
Otherpayable i W N S e um 026
Advance income 40.52 38.12
969.12 907.95
26 Current Provisions
2in Lakhs
As at As af
Patiguiars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Employee Benefits___ e ] T
Provision for Gratuity " T 8.48 1477
FProvision for Leave Encashment . 0.66 0.60
Total [ 9.14 15.37
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R Mall Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025
27 Revenve from Operations
e g _ Zin Lakhs
v Trormeyeorewm rortheyeuronan
(Mol 4 ERC ST A b e B =

Ly e I e _ March31,2024
Sale of services
License fees, rental income etc.

16,960.78

Revenue share 996.40
___Marketing income 668.14
Common area maintenance recovery from fenants 3,842.45
____Store room rental 26.62
2249439

Other operatingrevenve | e e

HVAC and Additionat electricity recoveries 2,031.64

Car Parking Income 476.75
Total 25,002.78

28 Other Income

% in Lakhs

S mal T - p A~y -0 SN LT T s ) r ) z
Interest income

On fixed deposifs

OnlCD

Others
Profit on sale of investments -
Reversal of excess provision for doubtful debts
Miscellaneous income
Sundry balances written back
Total

29 Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, Wages & Bonus g
Contributions to Provident & Other Funds

17.79
Gratuity expenses — 11.63
Expenses related fo compensated absences ) - n 267
Staff welfare expenses — 19.56
Total 984.38

30 Finance Costs
Zin Lakhs

Interest cost on financial liability measured at amortised cost
On term loan

R 8,549.48
On leose liabilities . . » 26780
Loan processing fees - _— 20.88
Finance charges 16.09
Total 8,854.25




R Mall Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the vear ended March 31, 2025

31 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Tin Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment(refernote2) 408.51 .. 260,68
Depreciation of investment properties (Refer Note 3) = i 1.06020 _1114.48
Depreciation of Right-to-use asset (Refer Note ) _ . 100.02 -
Amortisation of infangible assets (Refer Note 4) I 8.66 5.05
Total 1,577.39 1,380.21
32 Other Expenses
Zin Lakhs
d For the year ended For the year ended
fateygr March 31, 2025 March 31; 2024
EBlectricity charges 152817 171211
Repairs and maintenance -Building .. N — 19234 ... 19665
-others 1.569.84 1,207.02

Insurance 74.56 73.80
Conveyance Expenses ~ e ~ . 38.20 31.58
Rotes ond taxes Lig90or 196178
Rent 694 21.27
Legal and professional fees ——— L - . 479.07 559.95
Payment to Auditors i e e 12.00 12.00
Advertising and sales promotion - 949.93 722.39
Brokerage commission . 00 65.89
CSR expenses 163.00 __119.18
Water charges (Net off recoveries) e W28 _...20.34
Cor parking expenses e i p SR . 40.44
Hiring and Recuitment expenses e I e 3.49
Facility Management . - 229.98 234,59
Other outsourcing expenses ~ I =995 2.78
Security Expenses i 511.20 ‘ 517.95
Donation 200 17.00
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets e o e 24.46
Miscelloneous expenses 334.78 147.01
Total | 7.423.97 7.691.34
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R Mali Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

33 Earnings per share

2 in Lakhs
particulars Forthe yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Basic and Diluted EPS
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period o [ Hintakhs 7,150.23  599.56
Earnings available to equity shareholders of Class AShares T T Rintakhs 6,985.58 585847
Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period towards basic No. 34,13,926 20,76,503
and diluted Class A Shares
Nominal Value of Class A equity share o % 10.00 10.00
‘Basic and Diluted EPS Class A equity shares T ] g 20462 282.13
j_é_a_TT—__ﬁ_gi available to equity shareholders of Class B Shares ‘W_{I—nmi_;i(hs ::_: 164.65 ‘:_ “ o 13&6‘3‘
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period towards basic No. 80,464 48,945
and diluted Class B Shares
‘Nominal Vatue of Class B equity share T 10.00 10.00
Basic and Diluted EPS Class B equity shares L 204.62 282.13
34 Related party transactions
a List of related parties and relationship
Description of relationship iName of Related Parties
Holding company e Runwal Developers Private Limited e —
|Aethon Developers Private Limited
Galleria Retail Private Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries R Retail Ventures Privage Limited
Runwal Constuction Private Limited
Runwal Holding Estates Private Limited
|Runwal Hotels Private I_.m_mted
Entities over which one or more Key Management Personnel (“KMP”) or their H1style Retail Private Limited
relatives have significant influence / control / joint control |Runwal Retail Private ITmltE
Entities having significant influence over the Company have significant influence / 'R Siddhatva Developers Pr1vate Limited
control / joint control through voting power or otherwise |Ar1ane Orgachem Private Limited
T Mr. Ashok G Darak (up to 23rd December 2024) _
Key Management Personnel IMs Jayshree Tao_rl (w.e.f. 08 @eﬁ:_er 2024) -
|Mr. Ashish Bhandhari (w.e.f 30 November 2021)
b Related party transactions are as follows:
% in Lakhs
For the year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars With person having | SR CTEI | With Hoiding ] With Fellow
control ' et Deea A Company ! Subsidiaries it Deers
| having controt | ]
Inter corporate deposits taken | - - ‘ 15,500.00 | 6,700.00 -
Runwal Developers Private Limited . i - 1 - | 15500.00 . - - |
R Retail Ventures Private Limited | - - 1,700.00 | -
Runwal Constuction Private Limited | - ‘ - | 5,000.00 | - |
inter corporate deposits paid back - | - 15,500.00 6, 700. 00 -
Runwal Developers Private Limited - | - 15,500.00 -
_Runwal Constuction Private Limited - - o . o 5,000.00 | _ -
R Retail Ventures Private Limited :_ o - o -l 1,700.00 ;
Inter Corporate deposit given - : - 1 - 2,100.00
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited B - - - . | 2,100.00 |
Inter corporate deposits received ) } ) } : 2,100.00
back O L P N
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited j - - - 1 , 2,100.00
Electr1c1ty and Water Recoveries | crTertrTTToTr T _n__.____a_..,_ T - ’ 26.01 |
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited ] - - B - 26.01
Investment in shares ‘P- 82,750.05 i T
‘Runwal Developers Private Limited | 82,750.05 - -
Buy back of shares B I S | 82,750.05 R
Runwal Developers Private Limited N S TE2,75005 T T e e
Purchase of OCD _ . s - 2,500.00 | 25,000.00 | -
Runwal Constuction Private Limited | by i 2,500.00 : -

Runwal Developers Private Limited

i

R Retail Ventures Private Limited :

Buy back of investment in shares
Runwal DeveTop:;IS—nﬁt.e_L.lmlted !
Security Deposit Given o
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Security Deposit Received back
R Retavl Venturgs Prlvate leltgd_

Runwal Constuction F Pr1vate Limited )

72,500.00

3,825.00

3,825.00

34,000, 00

21 000. 00

 13,000.00




R Mall Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the vear ended March 31 2025

¥ in Lakhs
*For tha yaar ended Marck 3172025 =
Particulars With person having "t Close family With Holding With Fellow
control LTI A AT Company Subsidiaries W O hers
having control
Purchase of Solar Plant r- - a 71181 T -
Runwal Developers Private Limited T 615.00 -
Reimbursement of Solar expenses - - 96.81 -
Lease Deposit Given I 17.50 117.50 - - -
Sandeep S Runwal o o 17.50 | - o -
Subhash S Runwal 117.50 e -
"Loan Given ™ S 1,380.00 T - -
Sanya S. Runwal 1,380.00 oo
Loan Received back - 7771,380.00 - S -
Sanya S. Runwal 1,380.00 . - ; B
Rent Paid - 103.81 - - -
Chanda§. Runwal Y - T
_In_terest Received T iM_WA ) 22.46 o ?A D N-M"z
Sanyas. Runwal o 22.46 B
Salery to Key Management Person* : - 92.09
Ms. Jayshree Taori
(w.e.f. 08 November 2024) ! 37.44
Mr. Ashish Bhandhari ! T T
{w.e.f 30 November 2021) a0
b Related party transactions are as follows:
% in Lakhs

|
With person having
control

Particutars

With Close family X '
members of person
having control

For the year ended March 31, 2024

With Holding
Company

With Fellow
Subsidiaries

With Others

Inter corporate deposits taken
Runwal Developers Private Limited

Inter corporate deposits paid back

‘Runwal Developers Private Limited
Capital Advance given
Runwal Developers Private Limited

4,500.00
4,500.00

11,400.00

11,400.00 |
100.00
100.00

Security Deposit given

36,000.00

R Retail Ventures Private Limited _:: ;_

Runwal Construction Private Limited

Loans & Advances given

Sandeep Runwal

Loans & Advances received back
Sandeep Runwal

2,400.00
~2,400.00

2,400.00
. - 2,400,00

Interest on Loans & Advances given 142.97

Interest on Loan to Sandeep Runwal 142.97

Other Income/Marketing
Income/ReImbursement

Runwal Developers Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Purchase of Electricity (Net of
Rebate)

Runwal Developers Pr Private lelted T ) - |

21,000.00
15,000.00

104.58

104.58

e
Salary to Key Management Person* |

Mr. Ashish Bhandhari |
(w.e.f 30 November 2021)

55.19

55.19

Total compensation paid fo key management petsonnel

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

Short-ferm emplo
Post-employmenj
OTher Iong term beneﬂts

Shore ase dpaymem‘s

here for KMPs.

The transactions with related pariies are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length fransactions. This assessment is
underiaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

9.

;

Quistanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

9209

 for gmfuny “and leave encashment benefits are determined on act s :'wmv{oss Hence the same is not seperafely repon‘ed

55, 19
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¢ Related party balances are as follows:

Particulars With person having

control

As at March 31, 2025
With Close family
members of person
having controt

With Holding
Company

T in Lakhs

With Fellow

Subsidiaries Ll

Securlty deposnts given

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Capltal Advance

Anane orgachem Private lelted
Secunty deposit recewab_lg

Runwal Construction Private Limited

_3,825.00
3 825.00
150.00

150.00

~2,000.00

Secur’ity deposit Paid

Sandeep S Runwal

Subhash S Runwal
Investment in OCD
Aethon Developers Private Limited

Trade Receivable
Ariane orgachem Private Limited

Trade payable

Runwal Developers Private Ltd
Chanda S. Runwal

Remuneration payable at the year
end

ey Marnageria Porsomnel |
Ms. Jayshree Taori ) '—i T
(w.e.f. 08 November 2024)
Mr. Ashish Bhandhari
(w.e.f.30 November 2021)

129.38
129.38

2,000.00

27,500.00

727,500.00
— = BN
13076

Related party balances are as follows:

Particulars - With person having

control

As at March 31, 2024

With Close family
members of person
having control

With Holding
Company

% in Lakhs

With Fellow

Subsidiaries Wit Seery

Inter corporate deposits Payable

- 1,731.00

Runwal Developers Private Limited
Capital Advance

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Runwal Developers Private Limited |
Secunty deposit rgcew_able !
R Retail Ventures Private Limited |
Runwal Construction Private Limited |

Trade receivables

Ariane Orgachem anate lelted
Trade payable

Runwal Devel(;pers Private Limited |
Remuneration payable at the year
end

—Ke'y Managerial Personnel*

1,731.00
100.00

710000

T 121.14
121.14

150.00
150.00

36,000.00 |

21,000.00 |
15,000.00 |

122,95
122.95

4.20

\
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35 Employee benefits
(a) Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the period are as under :

Zin Lakhs
Forthe yearended  For the year ended
Fecuirs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employer's contribution 1o provident fund » E - 1676 1746
Employer's contribution to ESIC - ] 0.07 0.10
Labour welfare fund contribution for workmen 0.05 0.03
Total 16.88 17.79

(b) Defined benefit plans
i) Gratuity (unfunded)

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of the

provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. Benefits would be paid at the time of the separation.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

I Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the period

% in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period e 35.86 Sl 3481
2Interestcost . «03 250
3 Currem servrce cosf e e L = 538 .y 6.27
"4 Past service cost e e e m T was - o B
_ 5 Liability fransferred In/Acquisitions e e e
6 Liability Transferred out / Divestment e
7 Ben_ems_pgd directly by employer = - m 0w o
8 Benefits paid —
9 Actuarial changes arising from chonges in demographic ctssumphons e S T
10 Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions O I -~ 0.54 004
11_Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments e (5.34) _(7.78)
12 Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the period 35.59 35.86
I Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
% in Lakhs
= As af As at
Foey March 31, 2025 Morch 31,2024
1_Present Value of defined benefit obliaation of the end of the period {35.59}i (35 86)
2 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period e -
_ 3 Amountrecognised in the balonce sheet .~~~ (35. 59} ) (35 .86)
_4 Net (licbility)/ asset- Non-current . ) (22.11) _ _ JZLQ?L
5 Net (liability)/ asset- Current (8.48) (14.77)
Il Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the period
_ ~ ZinLakhs
. For the year ended For the year ended
paticyios March 31, 2025 Maich 31,2024
_1 Current service cost _ e 6.27
2 Interest cost on benefit obligation (Net) 2.51
3 Total expenses included in employee benefits expense 8.78
IV Recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) for the period
~ Zinlakhs
For the year ended For. me year ended
patetis March 31,2025 March 31,2024
1_Actuarial (Gain)/Losses on Obligation for the period {4.79). (7.73)
_2 Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income o - -
3 Change in Asset Ceiling 5 -
4 Recognised in other comprehensive income (4.79) (7.73)
V  Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Zin Lakhs
7 As af As at
Fetfieuides March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 Within the next 12 months (next annual reporfing period) 8.48 1477
2 2nd Followmg Yeclr e e g e T 6.99 456
33 FollowingYear " _ T T T T T set 483
4 4th Following year L 529 = — 4 .22
5 5’rh Following year N 491 - T3 58
6 Sum of years éth o IO yeors 9.04 78 36
7 Sum of 11 years and above 2.64 2.45
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35 Employee benefits (Contd...)

(]

VI The Principle Actuarial Assumptions used are as follows:

Zin Lakhs

Particulars Y XS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.54% . 7.14%
Salary escalation R 10.00% _ 10.00%
Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14 Mortality 2012-14
{Urbain) (Urban)

Mortality post retirement rate " e i |l : N.A. N.A.
Rate of Employee Turnover 30.00% 30.00%

Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the
obligations.

The salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as, demand and
supply in employment market.

VIl Sensitivity Analysis:
The sensiivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

~ Rinlakhs
.Change in Rate As at March 31, 2025 As af March 31, 2024
Change in Assumption increqse in i Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption | Assumption il Assumption Assumption
DiscountRate . {-(*t1%) ! {0.89) ‘ S Y24
Salary GrowthRate | (/X1 ] 051 e J0TT)
Attrition Rate [-/+1%) ] {0.43) 0.32

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the Defined Benefit
Obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

Note:

The actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were caried out at March 31, 2024. The present value of the
Defined Benefit Obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

VIl Risks associated with defined benefit plan

Interest Risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government securities rate will increase the present value of the
liability requiring higher provision.
Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members.

As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's licbility.
Asset liability mok-:hing risk: | The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go
basis from own funds.
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not
have any longevity risk.

Mortality fiske

Compensated Absences
The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences as per the policy of the Company.

.. ZinLakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
il Morch 31,2025 Mgrch 31,2024

Defined benefit obligation as at end of the period 2.20: 1.88
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36 leases

Company as a Lessor

The Company has recovered ¥ 20,268.71 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.17983.80 Lakhs) as rent from the Customers. Details of rental income recognized

during the year in respect of this is given below:

o Zin Lakhs
) Forthe year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 _March 31, 2024
Rent income recognized during the year 20,268.71 17,983.80
Total | 20,268.71 17,983.80
Company as a Lessee
The Company has taken office on leave and license basis
Right of use assets
— Zin Lakhs
Particulars For'the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
LCanying value at the beginning oftheyear ) < -
Addiionduing the year e e 362.72 -
Depreciationfortheyear (100.02) -
Carrying value at the end of the year 262,70 -
Analysis of Lease liability:
Zin Lakhs
E For the year ended For the year ended
st ol L L March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

‘Opening lease liabilities

Addition during the year /period__

Interest Cost

Cash outflow towards payment of lease liabilites
Deletion during the year on account of termination of lease agreements

Closing lease liabilities

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities {on undiscounted basis)

- in Lakhs
Particulars _ Asat X
: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than 1 year B i 13841
Between 1-5 years (ERS RN 73107 | -
More than 5 years o I . =2 | -
311.43 ==|
Impact on statement of profit and loss
~ ZinLakhs
Particulars For e year ended  For i_he'ye'?:r__eﬁaed
March 31, 2025 I_AML;_L&Q_

Interest on lease liabilities

2206

Depreciation on right of use assets

Net impact on profit betore tax
Deferred tax - (Charge]/ credit
Net impact on profit after tax
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37 Corporate Social Responsibility

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the Company. During the
year, the Company was required to spend ¥ 147.29 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 243.40 Lakhs) as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. The funds are utilized on the activities which are specified in Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013

~Rinlokhs
Forthe yearended  For the year ended
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
) _Construction / Acqguisifion of any assets s e
b) _For purpose other than (a) above 163.00 119.18
Total 163.00 119.18
s o, LOKDS
i For the year ended For the year ended
efiaisy March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
9)_ Amount required 1o be spent by the Company duingtheyear . 16300 11918
b)__ Amount of expenditure incurred e 16300 e 11218
<)_shortfallatthe end oftheyear " T T - :
d) _Total of previous years shortfc I 5
e) Reasonforshortfall NA NA
For contribution to related Party please refer note no 34.
Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act
g in Lakhs
. For the year ended For the year ended
rerisyion _March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Balance excess spent as at the beginning of the year o = -
Amount required fo be spentduringtheyear e 163.00 11918
Amount spent during the year * 1119.18]

Balance excess spent as at the end of the year

(163.00]
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38 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

{A) Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for :

Z in Lakhs
' As at A As at
YParhculurs ) March 31, 2024 Addition Setfled/Reversed ke 31,2025
In respect of : |
Income Tax (refer note (i) below| | - _265.51 ! . 265.51
GST (refer note {ii] below] 1.611.46 880.83 1,052.65 1,439.64
~ %inlokhs
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2023 Addition Settied/Reversed March 31, 2024
In respect of :
GST (refer note (i) below) - 1,611.46 - 1,611.46
Excise & Service Tax Demand {refer note iv to vi below) 36.82 - 36,82 -

Note:

i}

ii)

ii)

iv)

v)

vi)

The Company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the
appellate process. No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demands raised. The management believes that the
ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

During previous year the company has considered the GST notice amount of Rs.1071.63 Lakhs for the ITC mismatch cases, 241.02 lakhs for the
renting of Immovable property at R-city Mall and notice of amount of Rs.298.81 lakhs for the reimbursement of Water and electricity charges.
During the year a demand Rs. 209.62 lakhs has been raised for ITC mismatch for the financial year 2019-20 and interst to the extent of Rs.671.20
lakhs. Dueing the year a sum of Rs.512.81 lakhs has been paid under protest and liability of Rs.298.81 lakhs has been reduced on account of the
company succeeding in the case.

Future cash flows relating to above are determinable only on the receipt of judgment/decision from relevant forum/authorities.

The Company has implemented the decision given in the Supreme Court Judgment in case of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (lljWest Bengal" and the related circular (Circular No. C-1/1(33)2019/ Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284)
dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees' Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition
of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees’ Provident Funds
& Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 w.e.f. June 1, 2019. In the assessment of the management, the aforescid matter is not likely to have a
significant impact in respect of earlier years.

The Company will continue to monitor and evaluate its position based on future events and developments.

Service tax notice is also issued by Commissioner of Service tax and demand is raised for short payment of service tax on renting of immovable
property at R-city MAIl and also for FY 2011-12 and 2012-13 showing the payment wrongly under as input tax credit availed instead of showing it
as Service tax paid and for few of them an appeal is also filed in CESTAT.

The matter of the levy of service tax on renting of immovable property has been subjudice. The case of Home Solution Retailers of India and
others v/s Union of India and others [Delhi], had challenged the constitutional validity of Section é5(105) (zzzz) of the Finance Act, 1994 as
amended by the Finance Act, 2010. Citing the reason of the matter being subjudice, many licensees had not paid the service tax component
billed to them and accordingly in such cases, the Company too, has not deposited the service tax with the Government. Honorable Supreme
Court in the case of appeal filed by Retailers Association of India (RAI) vide it's order dated 14th October, 2011, as an inferim measure, directed
association members to deposit fifty percent of the service tax dues for the period upto 30th September, 2011 with the authorities and provide
surety for balance amount. The surety amount would be payable on the pronouncement of final verdict. Many of the licensees of the Company
are members of the association. The Company has not collected and paid service tax of Rs. 241.02 Lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs. 241.02 Lakhs). The
Company does not expect the outcome of the matter to have any adverse effect on its financial position or results of operations.

The Company had paid excise duty/CVD duty of Rs. 512.81 lakhs on various construction materials such as cement, steel etc. during the period 24
July 2006 to 17 March 2011 which were used by the Company for construction of the mall. Subsequently, the Company availed the credit of the
same in the service tax returns filed for the period October 2013 to March 2014. A submission was made on the basis of legal advice obtained by
management on allowability of CENVAT credit of Rs. 512.81 lakhs against letter issued by authority in January 2018 to reverse the same basis the
amendment in definition of “input" under CENVAT rules. During the process of investigation by the authorities, the Company had paid an amount
of Rs. 512.81 lakhs under protest.

(B) Leases
Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

i}

The Company has taken office premises on lease from 01 July 2024. The lease arrangement is for a period of 60 months with a non-cancellable
period of 36 months.

(C) Commitments

i}

There are capital expenditure contracted for Rs. 213.70 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.615.00 lakhs) at the end of the reporting period.
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39 Payment fo auditors (excluding GST)

. Rinlakhs
For the year ended For the yEbT&gea
il der March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Auditfees 12.00 12,00
Fees for cerhflcoies and other services (refer r noie below) e e 0.15 0.75
Total 12.15 12.75

40 Segment Reporting

(a) Description of segments and principal activities
The Company is in the business of Real Estate Development, owning and maintaining of a Mall under the name 'R City' in Ghatkopar, Mumbai,
Maharashtra. There is no other activities being caried out by the company. Geographically, the maill is carrying out its activity only in India, and
there are no sales outside this territory. Thus, there is only one geography which is India.

41 Revenvue from Contracts with Customers
{a) The amount of ¥ 235.93 lakhs recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period has been recognised as revenue during the

year ended March 31, 2025,
(b} Significant changes in contract asset and contract liabilities balances are as follows:

~ %in Lokhs
" As at As at

o March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
_Contract liability .
At the beginning of the reporting period - Advances from customers e 271.40
_Change due fo collection 235.93
Change due fo revenue recorded - | 271.40
At the end of the reporting period 235.93

(c

Contract liabilities represent amounts collected from customers based on contractual milestones pursuont to agreements executed with such
customers for rendering of Rental and maintenace Services.

{(d) The Company expects to satisfy the said performance obligations when (or as) the underlying real estate projects to which such performance
obligations relates are completed. Such real estate projects are in various stages of development as at March 31, 2025.

(e} Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or services.
____ Zinlokhs
3 For the year ended For the year ended
[Partiviers March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Timing of fransfer of goods or services | ——
Revenue from ¢ goods of services fransferred 1o customers over the period of time | 28,433.18 25,002.78
{f)} Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Profit and Loss
The following table discloses the reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
%in Lakhs
" For the year ended For the yeur ended
Soieniors March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract price of the revenue recoanised 1 28,433.18 25,002.78
Adjustments & -
Discount - -
Revenue from Contracts with Customers 28,433.18 25,002.78
&
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42 The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2025
Z in Lakhs

o A P | el ey

2 Vgﬁance _Rw e [E

45,413.53 ¢

i) | CurentRatio: _ !
iCurrent Assets (a)

gCurrenT Lial?ilh‘ies (o) r———— - 18.948.13 1 ‘Decrease in current assets due to
Current Ratio (a/b) Times - 2.40 (66.71%) decrase in security deposits
Numerator - Total Current Assets
!Denominator - Total Current Liabilities T
ii) {Debt-Equity Ratio : | o
{Total debt (a) | 1,24,752.64
Shareholder's Equity (b) i (44,682.99)
Debt - Equity Ratio (a/b) Times [279)F  14.45%;Not Applicable

Numerator - Total Debt {Current Borrowings +
Non- Currem  Borrowingsy

|
[Eormngs available for D e
{Debt Service [[2)]
DebT Service coverage R Roho (o/b) e Times {50.70%)

Numerator - Earnings available for debt service
{Profit/(loss) ofter tax + Finance cost +
Depreciation and amortisation expense + Otherl
adjustments iike loss on sale of Fixed assets etc}

Increase in repayment of debt
during the year

iDenominaTor— Finance Cost Paid + Principal
Repayment of Non-current borrowings + Lease
Liabilities Paid

iv) | Return on Equity Ratio : T o
Profit/floss| for the year (a) 599656
Average Shareholder’s Equity (b) 16.337.22) |

Return on Equity Ratio {a/b)
Numerator - Profit/{loss) for the year

(94.62%) (81.61%]

Decrease in Average Shareholder's
‘Equity due to cancellation of
freasury shares in previous year.

Denominator - Average Shareholder’s Equity
= {Opening Shareholder's Equity + Closing
Shareholder's Equity}/2

Shareholder’s Equity = Equity share capital +
Other equity

v) Inventory Turnover Ratio :
Cost of Goods Sold (a)
Average Inventory (b)
Inventoly Turnover Ratio {a/b)

Numerator - Cost of Goods Sold
Denominator - {Opening Inventory + Closing
Inventory)/2

vi) Trade Receivables turnover Ratfio :

E . Nol Applicable

Net Credit Sales [a] 25,002.78
Average Accounts Recelvoble b] 336850, Increase in operating revenue as
Trade Receivables turnover Ratio [a/b]| 7.42 82.20% compared fo PY and decrease in
Numerator - Revenue from operations{on trade receivables
. _icredif) — |
Denomma?or (Openxng trode recelvoble +
__ _IClosing trade receivable)/2 | —
iiir Trade Payables turnover Ratio : |
Credit Purchase @__ N 7.530.70 |
lAv_c_erage Trade Payable (b) ] ~ 2.768.06 _
Trade  Payables turnover Ratio (a/b) 2.72 | 3.52'%‘Nm Applicable

lNumerat r- Cred1t Purchases

Y
iDenominator - (Opening trade payables + Closing
trade payables)/2

S
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42 The following are analytical ratios for the period ended March 31, 2025 (Contd...)

period

|

Zin Lakhs
Particulars UOM MEI;L Mu;g:f!, Variance (%) Remarks
viii),Net Capital turnover Ratio : .
~'Revenue from Operations (a) 28,433.18 25,002.78
rkin: ital (b 1934, 26,465.4 X X X
Lv:t Eaﬁ%%ﬁé%ﬁ&m @by | Times K 9?;; 23 ; 463 93 (B64.86%) DCcrease in working capital due to
S e & " - repayment of security deposits
Numerator - Revenue from Operations |
Denominator - Working capital = current assets - j
Current Liabilities o
ix) Net Profit Ratio : |
Profit/(loss) for the year (a) - 7,153.81 6,002.34 ]
Revenue from operations (b) ) 128,433.18 25,002.78 Not Applicable
Net Prof|t Ratio (a/ b) % 25.16% 24.01%| 4.80%
Numerator - Proflt/(loss) for the y year ) K R T ! -
\Denominator - Revenue from o_pergtr&w__s: '_iw—m I . . -
x) [Return on Capltal Employed : ) i;:_ o ___.;«_--_ - ‘
Earnings before Interest and Taxes (a) ‘_ 19,122.70 | 1591534
Cap1tal Employed (b) 82,186.71 80,007.84
Return on Capltél_lianloyed @/ b) *j‘ . u_w( _:__92_ n :_W_, L 23__&7% 19.89% 16.97%: Not Applicable
Numerator Earnings before Interest and Tax §
|{Profit / (Loss) before tax + Finance cost}] |
Denominator - Capital Employed = Total Equity +
Borrowings - Deferred Tax Liabilities —
xi) [Return on Investment : ::_: R 1 n ) == J -
I Income ea_gle_qg_rlmvestmgnt‘s @ ] 386 81 32128 T e
(Average Investment for the peno_guglgl_‘ S 20 051.01 10,850.44 0,850.44 | ~ Increase in average investment
Return on Investment (a/b) % A 1.93% 2.96%} o {34.85%) during the current year
. Numerator - Income earned on mvestments . _{ |
Denommator - Average Investment for the
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43 Fair values Disclosure

a The canying value of financial instruments by categories

As at March 31, 2025

2 in Lakhs
Particulars PVIPL FVIOC SIS Total

Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
Financial assets _ |
Non-current e B o 0 - L ‘_w
Invesfmenis e o T e e = b 27,500.00 27,500.00
ther financial assets o e - =B T719.24 5,719.24
“Current
Trade Receivables | . - - I ‘ - b 2,247 .63 2,247.63
Cash nand Cash Equivalents | -1 L R I _..321282 3.212.82
LoongAdvances T T T T L T T T T T2.008.77 2,003.77
Other Financial Assefs - - - - 6,879.87 6,879.87
47,563.33 47,563.33

Borrowings 1798378 - 1.17.983.78
Cu"ent e o s . pe o - T B o ko e s
Bomowings " T 2 - 189883 1.898.83
Trade Poycnbles T T - = ; S .. 240428 2,404.28
Other Financial Lrobllmes - - - - 9,461.42 9,461.42
Total - - - - 1,31,748.31 1,31,748.31
As at March 31, 2024

% in Lakhs

FVTPL | Amorfised

Particulars ! Level-1 : Level-2 Level-3 FVIOCI e . Total
Financial assets | | o
Non-current_ - | 1 e | 15 | -
Investments o 0 oo - =
Other financial assets B 2 A o e 2,303.16 2,303.16
Current _ S| | I . i O I 2
Trade Receivables - - b - b - 1,957.28 1,957.28
Cash and Cash Equivalents - — . - - 2,948.66 2,948.66
Bank balances other than above - - - - N - | -
LoonaAdvances - T T T T T 850000 | 2,550.00
Other Financial Assefs i - = = . 36,919.08 . 36,919.08
Total ] - - - - 46,678.18 | 46,678.18
‘Financidi iiabilities I
Non-current e e e o ]
Borrowings ] - - - - 12164594 1,21,645.94
Current | o . . N 49090909090
Borrowings | - - - - .310670; 310670
Trade Payables | - - = - | 2750401% 12,750.40
_Other Financial Liabiiities | - = - = 8,773.97 8,773.97
Total - = - - 1,36,277.01 1,36,277.01

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial assets by valuation technique:

The fair value of financial instruments are classified into three categories i.e. Level 1, 2 or 3 depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities {level 1 measurements) and
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).

The hierarchies used are as follows:

+ Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;

¢ Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

¢ Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data

(b) Fair-value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included ot the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
1. Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, short term loans
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates (borrowings) are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest
rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, the carrying amounts are not materially different from their respective fair
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44 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
The Company's policy is to maintain ¢ strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future

development of the business. Management monitors the returmn on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financiat
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company

includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

Particulars

~ %in Lakhs
As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Borrowings (Note 19 & 22).

,,,,,, ) 1,19.88261 12475264
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents {Note 13} | 3,212.82 2,948.66
Net debt (A) ) o 1,16,669.79 1,21,803.98
Equity 409.53 204.82
Other equity (37.926.75) (44,887.81)
Total equity (B) e . {37.517.22) (44,682.99)
Gearing ratio (3.11) {2.73)

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loons and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any

interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended March 31, 2025.

e

. /.\ < N
R aoc o/
g




R Mall Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the vear ended March 31, 2025

45 Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Company’s risk management activities are subject to the management direction and control under the framework of Risk Management Policy
as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Management ensures appropriate risk governance framework for the Company
through appropriate policies and procedures and the risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and
risk objectives.

The Company's financial liabilities comprises mainly of borowings including interest accrual, frade, and other payables. The Company’s financial
assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, loans, frade and other receivables.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk.

(i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and commodity risk.
(a) Currency Risk
Currency risk is not material, as the Company's primary business activities are within India and does not have significant exposure in foreign
currency.

(b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The management is responsible for the monitoring of the Company's interest rate position. Various variables are considered by the
management in structuring the Company's borrowings to achieve a reasonable, competitive cost of funding.
Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management is as follows:

Zin Lokhs
As at As af
i 3 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial liabilities ‘
Variable rate instruments 1,18,898.78 1,23,654.11
fixed rafe insfruments . - o | ' 3 -
1.18,898.78 1,23,654.11
Financial assets -
Fixed rate instruments 36,413.45 ¢ 3.688.57
34,413.45 3,688.57

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilifies at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

Areasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rate would have resulted in variation in the interest expense for the Company by
the amounts indicated in the table below. Given that the Company capitalises interest to the cost of inventory to the extent permissible, the
amounts indicated below may have an impact on reported profits over the life cycle of projects to which such interest is capitalised. This
calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calcuiated based on risk exposures outstanding
as at that date. The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

Z in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
7100 BP increase 100 BP decrease ; 1100 BP increase {100 BP decrease
Fmancnal_l.lapll‘li_lgi__ e L ] |
Varigble rate instruments  — " ___\{ ‘. —1 » 7
Borrowings _ o [1.188.99) 1188991 T (1.236.54) 123654
‘Cash flow sensitivity (net) (1.188.99) 1,188.99 (1,236.54) 1,236.54

(ii) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, security deposits,
loans to employees and other financial instruments.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
a) Trade Receivables
Trade receivables of the Company comprises of receivables towards sale of properties, rental receivables and other
receivables.
Receivables towards sale of property
The Company is not substantially exposed to credit risk as property is delivered on payment of dues.
Receivables towards rental receivables
The Company is not substantially exposed to credit risk as Company collects security deposits from lessee.
Other Receivables
Credit risk is managed as per the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitorgyl. The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an
individual basis for major customers. The maximum expos:
financial assets.
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As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on frade receivables to mitigate the risk of default
payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk
The movement in the provision for expected credit loss are as follows:

Zin Lakhs
Particulars 532 Rt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
_Opening balance 418.07 510.01
Changes during the year . c (14.21) 191.94)
Closing balance 403.86 418.07

b) Other Financial Assets
This comprises of deposit with banks, loans, investments in equity instruments & preference shares, and other receivables. The company limits
its exposure to credit risks arising from these financial assets and there is no collateral held against these because counter parties are group
companies, banks and recognised financial institutions. Banks and recognised financial institutions have high credit ratings assigned by
credit rating agencies.

(i) Liquidity risk
Liguidiity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incuring unacceptable losses.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows. This monitoring includes financial
rafios and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash eguivalents.

The Company has access to funds from debt markets through loon from banks, commercial papers and other debt

instruments. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits.

Maturity profile of financial liabilities
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Tin Lakhs
As af March 31, 2025 : i‘r’n":g;? tessthaniyear | 1foSyears | Morethan 5 years Total
Boowings frefernote 19 and22) — 1,19.882.61 1,897.70 29.281.36 88,703.55 | 1.19,882.61
Trade Payables ] 2,253.57 225357 - - 2,253.57
Other Financial Liabilities 9.461.42 9.461.42 - - 9.461.42

Tin Lakhs

_ ' Camying | l

As at March 31, 2024 ! O 1 Less thon 1 year 1o 5 years . More than 5 years i Total
Borrowings (refer note 19 and 22) 1,24,752.64 3,106.70 1.21,645.94 2 1.24,752,64
Trade Payables ey . 2,709.95 2,709.95 - - 2,709.95

Other Financial Liabilities 8,773.97 | T8 N397 = 8,773.97




R Mall Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the vear ended March 31, 2025

46 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company's Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilifies. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities offected in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial statements were prepared. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year in which the estimates are
revised and in any future year affected.

47 Detdils of due to micro and small enterprises ("MSME")

On the basis of the information and records available with management, details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

are as below:
Zin Lakhs
As at ASTat
eyl _March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Principal amount remaining unpaid fo to any suppher as atf the year gnd R — 334.37 123.88
Interest due thereon | 1608 5.27
Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the MSMED, along with the amount of the payment made 1o the supplier
beyond the appoinied day during the accounting year. ¥ .
Amount of inferest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {(which have been paid but beyond the - -
_appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified underthe MSMED.
! nterest oc__crnied‘_a_g_g remaining unpald oi_tﬂe_grlq_gf the accounting year. - - -
Amount of fun‘her interest remaining due and payable even in succeedmg years. - -
48 Trade payable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2025
Z in Lakhs
i Ouhicmdfng for following periods from the booking date
SL ; Particulars Unbilled Nof due ":‘:zs‘ j-2 2.3 tr:r:z Total
| =y years years years
_ IMSME I 36.39 ¢ 89.10 14031 55.26 - . 321 06
__2 Ofthers 43.16 51489 89542 478.43 061 1 932 51"
__3 Disputed dues - MSME L - - - - 5 -
4| Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - =
'Total 79.55 603.99 1,035.73 533.69 - 0.61 2,253.57
As at March 31, 2024
Zin Lakhs
!_ Outstanding for following periods from the booking date
: iParticulars Unbilled Notdue “:::’] 1-2 2-3 | fa‘:;: Total
i ! ‘vear years years ]
1 IMSME E 4487 66.31 0.01 11099
2|OThers u[‘ e 81842 41146 _ 4387 689.14 351.97 284.10 | 2598 %
_3|Disputeddues-MSME___| T 1 L
4iDisputed dues - Others
Total 863.09 477.77 43.87 689.15 | 351.97 284.10 2,709.95
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49 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2025
% in Lakhs

St ; Outstanding for following periods from the booking date

No Particulars Not Due Less than é émonths -1 1- 2 years | 2.3 ol More than 3 Total
months | year i ;

Undisputed Trade 495.35 777 .67 59.00 182.13 10.89 60.10 1,585.14

receivables - considered

good | § .............
Undisputed Trade - - 6.11 8.78 0.53 1112 26.54
;

—

N

Receivables - which have !
significant increase in i
credit risk ) o l
3iDisputed Trade : 49.14 20.83 |
Receivables — considered ‘[

H

|

388.17 l”" T s8] 159.07 662.49

good RSN SR
4lDisputed Trade - - 18.93
Receivables ~ which have E

significant increase in

creditrisk ! .

_____ 49535 82681 _ 10487 60654 10149  _ 51623 2,651.49
| | i f | 1(403.86)

Allowance for significant |

increase in credit risk/ |

credit impaired

e ]
Total I 2,247 .63

T 28594 377.32

As at March 31, 2024
% in Lakhs

s i i _Outstanding for following periods frogn the booking dgte_ : i
No Forticulars Not Due lessthané | émonths-1 . years | 2.3years | Morethan3 Total
months | year BN L years L
1 Undisputed Trade 546.81 534,14 196.65 19.54 78.76 20.83 | 1.396.73
{receivables — considered [
good ...
2{Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in
___fcrediit risk _ N
3iDisputed Trade T 0.17 31,65 37.11 21,11 73.30 74528 | 978.62
Receivables - considered
good
4 Disputed Trade - - - -
Receivables — which have |
significant increase in
credit risk | | | | .
! | 546.98 565.79 233.76 110.65 | __152.08 ' 7811 2,375.35

(418.07)

Allowance for significant
increase in credit risk/
creditimpaired

‘Total 1,957.28

o
N
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50 Detdils of Secured Loans

Secured loans from Banks:

< M

. ;
$r. No Loan faken from SAALLELE Rate of interest
. amount
1 Bank Of Baroda CY - 41,692.00 March 31, 2025:
loan 00255 {P.Y.- 42,410.00) 8.75%
March 31, 2024:
8.80%

(Linked to BOB 6 M
MCLR)

Bank Of Baroda | CY - 48,658.83
{P.Y .- 49,772.90)

N

March 31, 2025:
8.85%
March 31, 2024:
8.60%

loan 00245

{Linked to BOB 1
year MCLR)

berreti 31,2025
8.55%
March 31, 2024: NIL

gainst/ g '

1.First & Exciusive Charge by way of
Hypothecation of entire rentals /
receivables (Whether present or
future) including lease & unleased
along with security deposits from the
Leased/unieased spaces
morigaged to our bank from R City
Mall.

given

2.First and Exclusive Charge on

escrow account opened with our
bank wherein all receivables from
the leased space to be deposited

3.1st charge on Registered Morigage
of Commercial Building No. T Wing A
of R City Malll Phase-I and
Commercial Building No.1 with Wing
B of R City Mall Phase-Il {Entire R City
Mall} having chargeabie/Licensable
area of approx. 12,14,727.38 sq. ft.
situated af Survey No.146 B, LBS
Marg, Ghatkopar (West), Mumbai
owned by company.

4 Irevocable undertaking stating
that the Hypothecation of rent
receivables will be in place fill the
currency of the term foan granted by
the bank and the company will
reassign the rent receivable in
respect of lease agreement which
are required / renewed / extended
on expiry of option period.

5.Undertaking from the company in
case any lessee defaults in payment
of lease rentals or vacates the
premises, the company shall service
the loan from their own sources.

é.lrevocable letter of authority from

(Linked to BOB 3 M |the company authorizing the lessee

MCLR)
] March 31 2025 ML
10) March 31, 2024:
8.35%

{Linked fo BOB 1
year MCLR)

CY - 119,330.83

Total (P.Y. - 122,039.40)

to pay the rent/lease rent amount o
our bank, duly acknowledged by the
lessee.

,Terms of repayment

|$tructured monthly repayment of
principal as under:

1. Rs.5 lacs for 42 months from
date of drawdown

2.Rs.66 lacs for 12 months
thereafter

3.Rs.1.5 cr for 12 months thereafter
4.Rs.2.2 cr for 12 months thereafter
5.Rs.2.5 cr for 36 months thereafter
6.Rs.2.92 cr for 12 months
thereafter

7.Rs.3.50 cr for 12 months
thereaiter

8.Rs.4.50 cr for 12 months
thereafter

9.Rs.5 cr for 27 months thereafter
10.Rs.8 cr for 2 months thereafter
11.Rs.3.54 cr last principal
instalment

Structured monthly repayment of
principal as under:

1. Rs.5 lacs for 33 months from
date of drawdown

2.Rs.2.5 cr for 58 months thereafter
3.Rs.3.5 cr for 15 months thereafter
4.Rs.5.5 cr for 37 months thereafter
5.Rs.7.5 cr for 12 months thereafter
6.Rs.7.35 cr last principal
instalment

|

Structured monthly repayment of
principal as under;
1. Rs.5 lacs for 22 months from
date of drawdown

2Rs20 lacs for 5 months
thereafter
3.Rs.55 lacs for 7 months
thereafter
4Rs75 lacs for 5 months
thereafter
5Rs.95 lacs for 8 months
thereafter

4.Rs.1.15 cr for 6 months thereafter

7.Rs.125 cr for 15 months
thereafter
8Rs.1.60 cr for 24 months
thereafter

9.Rs.2.1 cr for 12 months thereafter
10.Rs.3 cr for 6 months thereafter
11.Rs.3.5 cr for 6 months thereafter
12Rs.4.5 cr for 14 months
thereafter

13.Rs.5 cr for 16 months thereafter
14.Rs.7 cr for 9 months thereafter

15Rs.11.5 cr for 9 months
thereafter
16.Rs.17.45 cr last  princiapl
instalment.

Term Loan Il o be. repoid before
availment of fresh term loan VI

Sancfion

Amaunt

Purpose of

mount._____ Loan laken
1,43,679.00 For

general
corporate
purposes.

2 in Lakhs
Sanction date
07-11-2024

\
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51 Other Statutory Information

1

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any Benami property.

The following table summarises the fransactions with the struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Zin lakhs

iName of struck of Company Nature of Transaction Relationship

1 ;-‘ < 2 ] ..'

Broadview Entertainment Pvt Ltd Leave & License Receivable Customer - 0.47

Broadview Entertcinment Pvt Ltd Common Area Maintenance ‘Customer - 2.35
Receivable

Foresight Vision Care Company Pvt L |Security deposits towards Customer - (13.32)
shop rentatl

Urban Foods Pvt Ltd Security deposits towards Customer (17.45)
shop rental

For the year ended March 31, 2024

‘Name of struck of Company Nature of Transaction Relationship Amount of Transaction  Oulstanding Balance

durina the vear Receiavble/ (Pavable)

Broadview Entertcinment Pvt Ltd Leave & License Receivable Customer - 0.47

Broadview Entertainment Pvt Ltd Common Area Maintenance Customer - 2.35
Receivable

Foresight Vision Care Company Pvt L Security deposits towards Customer - (13.32)
shop rental

Urban Foods Pvt Lid Security deposits towards Customer - (17.45)
shop rental

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entfity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

iy directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

iy  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

i} directly or indirecily lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

i} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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7 The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961,

8  The Company has used the borrowings from banks for the purpose for which it was obtained.

9 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

10 The title deeds of all the immovable property {other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in note 3 and 9, to the financial statements, are held in the name of the company.

11 The Company have complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as presciibed under Section 2(87) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies {Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

Note on Going concern

As at Balance Sheet Date, the Company has a negative net worth of  37,517.22 lakhs. However, the Company has eamned an operational profit of
78,428.29 lakhs during the year. The management is confident of continuing to meet its obligations as and when they fall due, based on expected
cash flows from operations. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis.

Merger of Avalor Developers Private Limited with R MAII Developers Private Limited:
(i) Merger of Avalor Developers Private Limited (ADPL) with R Mall Developers Privated Limited (RMDPL):

During the previous year, the Board of Directors of R Mall Developers Privated Limited (*Company” or "Transferee Company”), in their meeting held
on 22nd January,2024, considered and approved a scheme of Merger of Avalor Developers Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) into and with
the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Companies (Compromises, Arangements and Mergers) Rules, 2016 and other rules and regulations framed thereunder (“Scheme").

The Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal {'NCLT') vide its order dated 09th December 2024, have approved the Scheme of
Merger (the "Scheme”) of Avalor Developers Private Limited with the Company with appointed date of 25th April, 2023, under section 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed thereunder. The said Scheme has been filed with ROC on
16th December, 2024, on compliance of all the conditions precedent mentioned therein. Consequently, above mentioned Transferor Company
got amalgamated with the Transferee Company w.e.f. 25th April, 2023. Since the Merged entity is under common control, the accounting of the
said Merger has been done applying Pooling of Interest method as prescribed in Appendix C of Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combinations’ . While
applying Pooling of Interest method, the Company has recorded all assets, liabilities and reserves atiributable to the subsidiary at their carrying
values as appearing in the consolidated financial statements of the Company as per guidance given in ITFG Bulletin 9.

Note on share capital

On Qlst April, 2023, the Share Purchase Agreement was entered between R Mall Developers Private Limited, Avalor Developers Private Limited &
Reco Ghatkopar Pte. Ltd. by virtue of this as on 25th April 2023, 50% of Class A and 50% of Class B equity shares were purchased by Avalor
Developers Private Limited from Reco Ghatkopar Pte. Lid.

The Shares held by Avalor Developers Private Limited from Reco Ghatkopar Pte. Lid. were purchased by Runwal Developers Private Limited as on
12th July, 2024. Hence shares have not been cancelled as on date which are shown as Treasury shares.

Impact of Buy back of shares by Holding company

Pursuant to merger of Avalor Developers Pvt Ltd with the Company, to comply with the Scheme of Amalgamation with the appointed date being
25 Apiril, 2023, as sanctioned vide Honorable NCLT order dated 09 December 2024, the Company had received shares of its Holding Company.

(a} Accounting Treatment

The carrying value of the shares of the Holding Company in the books of the Company was 82,904.72lakhs (1,54,67,298 shares). During the current
year, the Holding Company announced a buy-back scheme, in which the Company participated by tendering the said shares at the buy-back
price/face value of  1/Share. Consequent to this buy-back, the adjustment has resulted in recognition of a negative balance in other equity,
thereby leading to the total equity of the Company being negative as at |he balance sheet date.
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(b) Requlatory and Tax Position

The said tfransaction has been undertaken mainly to eliminate cross holding and to comply with the objects and intention of Section 19 of the
Companies Act 2013. The management, based on an opinion obtained, is of the view that the transaction is in compliance under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Income-tax Act, 1961.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software.

Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the accounting sofiware and the audit trail has been
preserved as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Recent Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) nofified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Conftracts, vide nofification dated August 12, 2024, under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024.

On September 09, 2024, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 116 conceming sale and leaseback transactions.

The amendments fo Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is
exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of
information that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects,
or is expected fo affect, the entity's financial performance, financial position and cash flows. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.

The amendments did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

57 Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code")

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has
not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into
effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

58 Subsequent Events

According to the management’s evaluation of events subsequent to the balance sheet date, there were no significant adjusting events that
occurred other than those disclosed / given effect to, in these financial statements as of March 31, 2025.

59 Previous year numbers have been re-classified/re-grouped to conform the current year's classification.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For M.B. Agrawal & Co. R Mall Developers Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: U45201MH2004PTC 1463273
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